
AMENDED AGENDA 
(Amended Items in Bold) 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
10:00 a.m., Friday, May 30, 2008 

 
AUDITORIUM A 

Dwight D. Eisenhower State Office Building 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 450 

Topeka, Kansas 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Minutes of May 9, 2008 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
Items listed on the consent agenda are a variety of contracts and matters that are routine in nature.  If 
requested by a commissioner, an item may be removed from the consent agenda and placed under Commission 
Items for further discussion and consideration. 

1. TRAK East - review and approve simulcast contracts 
a. Harrah’s Bossier City Investment Company, LLC (incoming),  Harrah’s Louisiana 

Downs - Louisiana; May 17, 2008 through October 18, 2008 
b. New York Racing Association Inc. (incoming),  Aqueduct, Belmont Park, Saratoga 

Race Course – New York; May 15, 2008, through December 31, 2008 
c. Ruidoso Downs Racing Inc. (incoming), Ruidoso Downs – New Mexico; May 23, 

2008 through September 1, 2008 
d. Sterling Suffolk Racecourse, LLC (incoming), Suffolk Downs – Massachusetts; May 

9, 2008 through November 8, 2008 
2. Kansas Racing LLC - review and file contracts 

a. Century Fire Sprinklers Inc., Kansas City, Kansas, 2008 annual backflow testing 
b. Wyandotte County Fair Association Inc., Kansas City, Kansas, parking lot/grounds 

rental 
3. Eureka Downs – review and approve contracts 

a. Emprise Bank, El Dorado, Kansas, letter of credit for race season 2008 
4. Camptown Greyhound Park, Inc. – review and file contracts 

a. Ruffin Development, Las Vegas, Nevada, clean up and store equipment 

5.30.08  Agenda - Page 1 



E. FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS 

1. TRAK East 
a. Handle & Attendance Report 
b. Status Report 

2. Kansas Racing LLC (KRLLC) 
a. Status Report 

3. TRAK Southeast (TRAK SE) 
a. Status Report 

4. Camptown Greyhound Park Inc. 
a. Status Report 

F. COMMISSION ITEMS 

1. Request for approval of the Woodlands/United Tote hub contract 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
Other Presenters:  Kansas Racing LLC Representative 
Staff Recommendation: Approval of the contract 
a. Staff Memo 

2. Woodlands race dates and post times 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Frances Snell, Director of Racing 
Other Presenters:  Jayme LaRocca, Kansas Racing LLC 
     Will Gardiner, TRAK East 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. Staff Memo 
b. Letter from Jayme LaRocca 
c. Memo from Board of Judges 
d. Letter from Animal Health Officers 

3. TRAK East audited financial statements for calendar year 2007 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: Staff Recommends approval 
a. Staff Memo 
b. Report on TRAK East Audit 
c. TRAK East Financial Report 

5.30.08  Agenda - Page 2 



4. Kansas Racing LLC audited financial statements for calendar year 2007 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: Staff Recommends approval 
a. Staff Memo 
b. Report on KRLLC 2007 Audit 
c. KRLLC 2007 Financial Statements 
d. Management Letter 
e. Response to Auditor’s Management Letter 

5. Conditions for greyhound races for Anthony Downs 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 

 Staff Presentation:  Frances Snell, Director of Racing 
 Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 

a. Staff Memo 
b. Anthony Conditions 

6. KHA Reimbursement from Kansas Bred Program 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 

 Staff Presentation:  Don Cawby, Director of Administration 
 Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval, subject to the availability 

of cash 
a. Staff Memo 
b. Reimbursement Request 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

H. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Executive Director 

2. Chief Gaming Officer 

3. Assistant Attorneys General 

4. Animal Health Officer 

5. Calendar review 
a. Commission Meeting Calendar 

I. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

1. Background reports 

2. Attorney-client communication 

5.30.08  Agenda - Page 3 



5.30.08  Agenda - Page 4 

J. FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 

1. Background Reports 

 Commission Action:  Discussion, consideration and possible action 
a. Connie Garrison 
b. Fabian Guido 
c. Kim Jackson 
d. Deborah Kay Rice 
e. Roger Sweet 
f. David Turnbull 
g. Robert Stovall 

2. Approval of positions 

 Commission Action:  Discussion, consideration and possible action 
a. Connie Garrison, Part-time Administrative Assistant, KRGC 
b. Kim Jackson, Administrative Officer, KRGC 
c. Roger Sweet, Operator/Line Technician, United Tote, The Woodlands 

3. Approval of race official for Eureka Downs 
Commission Action:  Discussion, consideration, and possible action 
Staff Presentation:  Frances Snell, Director of Racing 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. Staff Memo 

 Deborah Kay Rice, Clerk of Scales 

4. Approval of race official for Woodlands 
Commission Action:  Discussion, consideration, and possible action 
Staff Presentation:  Frances Snell, Director of Racing 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. Staff Memo 
b. Judges’ Recommendation 

 Fabian Guido, Clerk of Scales 

5. Approval of race stewards for Eureka & Anthony 
Commission Action:  Discussion, consideration, and possible action 
Staff Presentation:  Frances Snell, Director of Racing 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. Staff Memo 

 Robert Stovall, Chief Steward 
 Neal Guilfoyle, Associate Steward 
 David Turnbull, Associate Steward  

K. ADJOURNMENT 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
November 16, 2007 
Page 1 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
May 9, 2008 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
(A.) 

 Chair Sader called the May 9, 2008, meeting to order at 10:02 am at 
700 SW Harrison, Auditorium A, Suite 450, Topeka, Kansas.  
Commissioners Sader, Braun, Falstad, McKechnie, and Schwan were 
present at the meeting.  Others present included Executive Director 
Stephen Martino; Director of Racing Frances Snell; Assistant 
Attorney General Patrick Martin; Director of Audit/Electronic 
Security Charles LaBoy; Director of Security Don Brownlee; 
Director of Communications/Responsible Gaming Mike Deines; 
Director of Licensing Kit Bostrom; Director of Administration Don 
Cawby; Animal Health Officer D. Bryce Peckham, DVM; 
Commission Recording Secretary Linda Pendarvis and other staff.   

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
AGENDA: 
(B.) 

 Commissioner Braun (Schwan) moved to approve the amended 
agenda as presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
APRIL 17, 2008, 
MEETING MINUTES: 
(C.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve the minutes of the 
April 17, 2008, commission meeting as amended.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
(D.) 

 Commissioner McKechnie (Braun) moved to approve the consent 
agenda as follows: 

1. TRAK East - review and approve simulcast contracts 
a. Delaware Racing Association (incoming),  Delaware Park 

- Delaware; April 19, 2008 through November 11, 2008 
b. Fairmont Park, Inc. (incoming),  Fairmont Park Race 

Track - Illinois;  April  18, 2008, through September 1, 
2008 

c. Indiana Downs (incoming), Indiana Downs – Indiana; 
April 25, 2008 through July 8, 2008; and July 16, 2880 
through November 8, 2008 

d. Prairie Meadows Racetrack and Casino, Inc. (incoming), 
Prairie Meadows Racetrack – Iowa;  April 18, 2008 
through July 5, 2008 

e. Retama Development Corporation (incoming), Retama 
Park – Texas; April 25, 2008 through June 22, 2008; and 

C.1 (1 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 2 

August 29, 2008 through November 15, 2008 
f. River Downs Jockey Club, Inc. (incoming), River Downs 

– Ohio; April 11, 2008 through September 1, 2008 
g. TrakNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Arlington Park – 

Illinois; May 2, 2008 through September 21, 2008 
h. TrakNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Calder Race 

Course – Florida; January 9, 2009 through January 2, 
2009 (approval contingent upon approval of 2009 license 
and recognized group approval) 

i. TrakNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Churchill Downs 
– Kentucky; April 26, 2008 through July 6, 2008 and 
October 20, 2008 through November 29, 2008 

j. TrackNet Media Group, LLC (incoming),  Ellis Park – 
Kentucky; July 2, 2008 through September 1, 2008 

k. TrackNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Golden Gate 
Fields – California; May 14, 2008 through June 22, 2008 
and September 17, 2008 through December 21, 2008 

l. TrackNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Hollywood Park 
– California; April 23, 1008 through July 13, 2008 

m. TrackNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Hoosier Park – 
Indiana; April 5, 2008 through July 12, 2008 and August 
29, 2008 through November 23, 2008 

n. TrackNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Laurel Park – 
Maryland; April 2, 2008 through December 31, 2008 

o. TrackNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Lone Star Park 
– Texas; April 10, 2008 through July 27, 2008 and 
September 26, 2008 through November 29, 2008 

p. TrackNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), The Meadows – 
Pennsylvania; April 2, 2008 through December 31, 2008 

q. TrackNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Pimlico Race 
Course – Maryland; April 17, 2008 through June 7, 2008 

r. TrakNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Remington Park 
– Oklahoma; August 21, 2008 through December 14, 
2008 

s. TrakNet Media Group, LLC (incoming), Thistledown – 
Ohio; May 1, 2008 through October 25, 2008 

t. Wonderland Greyhound Park, Inc. (incoming), 
Wonderland Greyhound Park – Massachusetts; April 26, 
2008 – September 12, 2008 

u. Canterbury Park (incoming), Canterbury Park – MN; May 
3, 2008 through September 1, 2008 

v. Nebraska State Fair (incoming), Nebraska; May 9, 2008 
through July 13, 2008 

w. Racing Associates of Colorado (incoming), Arapahoe 

C.1 (2 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 3 

Park – CO; May 24, 2008 through August 10, 2008 

2. Kansas Racing LLC - review and approve contracts 
a. NetSuite, San Mateo, CA, Accounting Program 
b. Porlier Outdoor Advertising, Foristell, MO, Outdoor 

Advertising 

3. Eureka Downs – review and approve contracts 
a. Copper Kettle Restaurant, Eureka, KS, Concessions 
b. Greenwood County, Eureka, KS, Equipment rental 
c. Richard Nye, Claremore, OK, Track Consultant 

4. TRAK East – review and approve contracts 
a. American Greyhound Track Operators Association, West 

Palm Beach, FL, Annual Dues 

5. The Anthony Fair Association – review and approve contracts 
a. Gene Wilson & Associates, Pond Creek, OK, Photofinish 

and video 
b. Brad Broyles, Eureka, KS, Assistant horse race starter 
c. Rita Osborn, Eureka, KS, Program production and results 

reporting 
d. MOC Insurance Services, San Francisco, CA, Jockey 

insurance 
Motion passed unanimously. 

   
MOTION, 
EXECUTIVE 
SESSION: 
(E.1.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Braun) moved that the commission go into a 
15-minute executive session from 10:10 am to 10:25 am for the 
purpose of attorney-client communication.  Those included in the 
executive session were the commission, Mr. Martino, and Mr. Martin.  
No action is to be taken in executive session, and the subjects 
discussed are to be limited as previously described.  A full record of 
this motion is to be maintained as a part of the permanent record of 
the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.  At the conclusion of 
the executive session, the meeting is to be continued in open session.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 10:28 am with all members 

present as previously noted. 
   
FACILITY REPORT, 
TRAK EAST: 
(E.2.) 

 The commission heard the TRAK East facility report, given by Mr. 
Will Gardiner, Administrative Manager. 

   
   
   

C.1 (3 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 4 
   
FACILITY REPORT, 
KRLLC: 
(E.3.) 

 The commission heard the Kansas Racing LLC (KRLLC) facility 
report from Mr. Jayme LaRocca, General Manager.  Mr. Howard 
Grace, of W. M. Grace Company, gave a construction update. 

   
FACILITY REPORT, 
EUREKA DOWNS: 
(E.4.) 

 The commission heard the Eureka Downs (KQHRA/GCFA) facility 
report, given by Mr. Lee Smith, General Manager. 

   
FACILITY REPORT, 
TRAK SE: 
(E.5.) 

 The commission heard comments on TRAK SE presented by Mr. 
David McLane, attorney for TRAK SE. 

   
FACILITY REPORT, 
CAMPTOWN 
GREYHOUND PARK: 
(E.6.) 

 The commission heard the Camptown Greyhound Park facility report 
given by Mr. Kevin Allis, General Manager for Pari-mutuel 
Operations, with further comments from George Wingert, lobbyist for 
Ruffin Cos. 

   
DISCUSSION, 
EXTENSION OF 
TRAK EAST/KRLLC 
MGMT. CONTRACT: 
(F.1.) 

 Mr. Martin discussed a request to extend the existing TRAK 
East/Kansas Racing, LLC Facility and Management Agreement term 
until 60 days from the date KRLLC reaches a race track gaming 
facility management agreement with the Kansas Lottery Commission 
or six months from May 1, 2008, whichever comes first. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
REQUEST TO 
EXTEND MGMT. 
CONTRACT: 
(F.1.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved to grant the requested 
extension effective April 30, 2008, for a period of until 60 days after 
execution of a race track gaming facility management agreement 
between Kansas Racing LLC and the Kansas Lottery Commission or 
six months, whichever comes first.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
DISCUSSION, CREDIT 
FOR WOODLANDS 
OVERPAYMENT OF 
LICENSE FEES: 
(F.2.) 

 Mr. LaBoy discussed the Woodlands’ request for a credit against 
future license fee payments to recoup a $1,000 overpayment resulting 
from a revised April racing schedule. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
REQUEST FOR 
CREDIT: 
(F.2.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve the 
reimbursement request as submitted.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
DISCUSSION, KHA 
REQUEST FOR 
DISTRIBUTION OF 
BREEDING 
DEVELOPMENT 
FUND MONEY FOR  

 The commission heard Chief Fiscal Officer Neysa Thomas discuss 
the Kansas Horsemen’s Association (KHA) request for distribution of 
Breeding Development Fund Money for 2008. 

C.1 (4 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 5 
 
2008: 
(F.3.) 
   
MOTION, APPROVE 
DISTRIBUTION OF 
BREEDING 
DEVELOPMENT 
FUND MONEY: 
(F.3.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (McKechnie) moved to approve the Kansas 
Horsemen’s Association (KHA) request for distribution of Kansas 
Bred money for Quarter Horse and Thoroughbred racing for 2008, 
subject to the availability of funds, as follows: 
 
Eureka Downs: 

• $22,500 for Kansas Bred Futurity (Quarter Horses) 
• $10,000 for Kansas Bred Derby (Quarter Horses) 
• $200 available to Kansas Bred Quarter Horses in all Quarter 

Horse overnite races and the trial races for the Kansas Jackpot 
Prep Stakes races 

• $1,000 per Thoroughbred race will be added with a cap of 
$15,000 

• $2,500 will be approved for a Thoroughbred stake race if the 
track will match the funds. 

 
Anthony Downs: 

• All Quarter Horse races will have $200 each available to 
Kansas Bred horses 

• $1,000 per Thoroughbred race will be added with a cap of 
$15,000 

• $2,500 will be approved for a Thoroughbred stake race if the 
track will match the funds. 

 
Woodlands: 

• All Quarter Horse overnite races including the stakes trials 
will have $200 available to Kansas Bred Quarter Horses. 

• There will also be $2,500 KBDF added to the Kansas 
Jayhawk Stakes. (Quarter Horses) 

• Thoroughbred proposal will be determined at a later date. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  

   
DISCUSSION, 
CONSIDERATION OF 
INVOICED EXPENSES 
FOR KHA 
MEDIATION: 
(F.4.) 

 Mr. Martin discussed the invoice received by the Kansas Horsemen’s 
Association for services ordered by the KRGC to mediate a joint 
recommendation on statutorily required regulations. 

   
   
   

C.1 (5 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 6 
   
MOTION, APPROVE 
INVOICED EXPENSES 
FOR KHA 
MEDIATION: 
(F.4.) 

 Commissioner Braun (Falstad) moved for approval for KHA to pay 
the mediator’s invoiced fees as reasonable and necessary for 
conducting the mediation.  Motion passed unanimously.  

   
DISCUSSION, 
ANNUAL AUDITED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF 
WICHITA 
GREYHOUND 
CHARITIES FOR 2007: 
(F.5.) 

 Mr. LaBoy presented copies of the 2007 annual audited financial 
statements of Wichita Greyhound Charities for the commission’s 
review and consideration. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
ANNUAL AUDITED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF 
WICHITA 
GREYHOUND 
CHARITIES FOR 2007: 
(F.5.) 

 Commissioner McKechnie (Schwan) moved to approve Wichita 
Greyhound Charities’ 2007 annual audited financial statements as 
presented.  Motion passed unanimously.  

   
DISCUSSION. 
ANNUAL AUDITED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF 
WICHITA 
GREYHOUND PARK 
FOR 2007: 
(F.6.) 

 Mr. LaBoy presented copies of the 2007 annual audited financial 
statements of Wichita Greyhound Park for the commission’s review 
and consideration. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
ANNUAL AUDITED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF 
WICHITA 
GREYHOUND PARK 
FOR 2007: 
(F.6.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve Wichita 
Greyhound Park’s 2007 annual audited financial statements as 
presented.  Motion passed unanimously.  

   
DISCUSSION, 
RACING OFFICIALS 
FOR EUREKA 
DOWNS: 

 The commission heard Ms. Snell present the slate of racing officials 
for Eureka Downs. 

C.1 (6 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 7 
 
(F.7.) 
   
MOTION, APPROVE 
RACING OFFICIALS 
FOR EUREKA 
DOWNS: 
(F.7.) 

 Commissioner McKechnie (Braun) moved that the following 
individuals be approved as race officials for Eureka Downs for the 
2008 meet: 

Lee Smith, General Manager 
Rita Osborn, Racing Secretary and Horsemen’s Bookkeeper 
Tara Osborn, Back up Horsemen’s Bookkeeper 
Alton Hoover, Back up Racing Secretary 
Angie Lowe, Mutuel Manager 
Tim Mitchell, Starter, Identifier, Paddock Judge 

Motion passed unanimously.  
   
DISCUSSION, 
REQUEST FOR 
FINGERPRINT 
WAIVER: 
(F.8.) 

 The commission heard Ms. Bostrom; Lee Smith, General Manager at 
Eureka Downs; and Dan Bird, General Manager at Anthony Downs, 
discuss a request by Eureka Downs and Anthony Downs for a waiver 
of the fingerprint requirements for certain employees licensed to 
work during the 2008 race meet. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
WAIVER OF 
FINGERPRINT 
REQUIREMENTS: 
(F.8.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Braun) moved to waive the fingerprint 
requirements for temporary and short-term employees working at 
Eureka Downs and Anthony Downs. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  

   
MOTION TO RECESS  Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved that the commission take a 5-

minute recess from 11:40 am until 11:45 am.  Motion passed 
unanimously.   

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 11:48 am with all members 

present as previously noted. 
   
DISCUSSION, 2008 
ANTHONY DOWNS 
FAIR RACE DATES: 
(F.9.) 

 The commission heard Ms. Snell present the requested 2008 fair race 
dates for Anthony Downs. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
2008 ANTHONY 
DOWNS FAIR RACE 
DATES: 
(F.9.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (McKechnie) moved to approve the following 
2008 fair race dates for Anthony Downs:  July 11, 12, 13, 18, 19, and 
20. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  

   
   
   

C.1 (7 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 8 
   
DISCUSSION, 2008 
WAGERING FORMAT 
FOR ANTHONY 
DOWNS: 
(F.10.) 

 The commission heard Mr. LaBoy discuss the proposed 2008 
wagering format for Anthony Downs. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
2008 ANTHONY 
DOWNS WAGERING 
FORMAT: 
(F.10.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve the 2008 
wagering format for Anthony Downs as presented. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  

   
DISCUSSION, 2008 
SURETY BOND 
AMOUNT FOR 
ANTHONY DOWNS: 
(F.11.) 

 The commission heard Mr. LaBoy discuss the proposed 2008 surety 
bond amount for Anthony Downs. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
2008 SURETY BOND 
AMOUNT FOR 
ANTHONY DOWNS: 
(F.11.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Braun) moved to approve the Anthony 
Downs surety bond amount of $34,433. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  

   
DISCUSSION, 2008 
ANTHONY DOWNS 
CONDITION BOOK: 
(F.12.) 

 The commission heard Ms. Snell discuss the 2008 condition book for 
Anthony Downs. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
2008 ANTHONY 
DOWNS CONDITION 
BOOK: 
(F.12.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Braun) moved to approve the 2008 condition 
book for Anthony Downs with changes as noted. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  

   
DISCUSSION, 
FUTURE KRGC 
MEETING DATES: 
(F.13.) 

 The commission heard Mr. Martino discuss suggested future meeting 
dates for the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
FUTURE KRGC 
MEETING DATES: 
(F.13.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Braun) moved to approve the following 2008 
meeting dates:  July 14, August 20, September 8, October 3. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  

   
   

C.1 (8 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 9 
   
CALL FOR PUBLIC 
COMMENTS: 
(G.) 

 Chair Sader called for public comments. 
• Doug Lawrence – Exec. Director, Kansas Greyhound Assn. 

   
STAFF REPORT, 
MARTINO: 
(H.1.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Martino. 

   
STAFF REPORT, 
KREHBIEL: 
(H.2.) 

 There was no staff report from Mr. Krehbiel. 

   
STAFF REPORT, 
ASST. ATTORNEYS 
GENERAL: 
(H.3.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Martin. 

   
STAFF REPORT, 
PECKHAM: 
(H.4.) 

 The commission heard the Woodlands injury report from Dr. 
Peckham for March 2008. 
 

   
STAFF REPORT, 
CAWBY: 
(H.5.) 

 The commission heard a calendar review from Mr. Cawby. 

   
MOTION, 
EXECUTIVE 
SESSION: 
(I.1.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved that the commission go into 
executive session from 12:35 pm to 1:10 pm for the purpose of 
reviewing 23 background investigation reports.  Those included in the 
executive session were the commission, Mr. Martino, Mr. Martin, 
Mr. Brownlee, and security staff.  No action is to be taken in 
executive session, and the subjects discussed are to be limited as 
previously described.  A full record of this motion is to be maintained 
as a part of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission.  At the conclusion of the executive session, the meeting 
is to be continued in open session.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 1:10 am with all members 

present as previously noted. 
   
MOTION, APPROVE 
BACKGROUND 
REPORTS: 
(J.1.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve the background 
investigation reports of Richard Allen, Charles Alstrom, Daniel Bird, 
John Blevins, Kenneth Boulware, Thomas A. Burlingham, Michael 
George, Aurby Herridge, Zachary Kimsey, Jayme LaRocca, Judy 
Laster, Martin Miller, Philip Morrell Jr., Fashad Rezvani, Jeanette 
Smillie, Richard Morgan, Timothy Tkacik, Martin Vanderwerff, 
Jennifer Wesco, Ronald Moorhouse, Mark Probst, Bill Hunt, Breanna 

C.1 (9 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 10 

Colbert.  Motion passed unanimously. 
   
DISCUSSION, 
RACING OFFICIALS 
FOR THE 
WOODLANDS: 
(J.2.) 

 The commission heard Ms. Snell’s presentation of racing officials for 
The Woodlands. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
RACING OFFICIALS 
FOR THE 
WOODLANDS: 
(J.2.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved to approve the following 
racing officials for The Woodlands: 
• Jayme LaRocca, General Manager 
• Zachary Kimsey, Starter 
• Breanna Colbert, Clerk of Scales 
Motion passed unanimously.  

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
POSITIONS: 
(J.3.) 

 Commissioner Braun (McKechnie) moved to approve the following 
positions:  
• Richard Allen; State Auditor III, KRGC 
• Charles Alstrom; TRAK-East Board of Director’s Member 
• John Blevins; Director of Security, Anthony Downs 
• Kenneth Boulware; Security Guard, The Woodlands 
• Thomas A. Burlingham; State Auditor III, KRGC 
• Michael George; Security Guard, The Woodlands 
• Aurby Herridge; Unclassified Temporary Enforcement Agent, 

KRGC 
• Judy Laster; Backup Money Room Manager, the Woodlands 
• Martin Miller; Tote Operator, United Tote Portland Hub 
• Philip Morrell, Jr.; Public Service Executive II, KRGC Topeka 

Office 
• Fashad Rezvani; Director of Food and Beverage, The Woodlands 
• Jeanette Smillie; Tote Operator, United Tote Portland Hub 
• Richard Morgan, Assistant General Manager, the Woodlands 
• Timothy Tkacik; Tote Manager, United Tote Portland Hub 
• Martin Vanderwerff; Assistant Tote Manager, United Tote 

Portland Hub 
• Jennifer Wesco; Board Member, Camptown 
• Ronald Moorhouse, Tote Operator, United Tote Portland Hub 
• Mark Probst, Tote Operator, United Tote Portland Hub 
• Bill Hunt, Tote Operator, United Tote at Kansas tracks 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 

   

C.1 (10 of 11)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
May 9, 2008 
Page 11 
   
MOTION, 
EXECUTIVE 
SESSION: 
 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved that the commission go into 
executive session at 1:15 pm for the purpose of attorney-client 
communication, to resume at 1:30 pm.  Those included in the 
executive session were the commission, Mr. Martino, and Mr. Martin.  
No action is to be taken in executive session, and the subjects 
discussed are to be limited as previously described.  A full record of 
this motion is to be maintained as a part of the permanent record of 
the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.  At the conclusion of 
the executive session, the meeting is to be continued in open session.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 1:30 pm with all members 

present as previously noted. 
   
ADJOURN:  Commissioner Braun (McKechnie) moved to adjourn at 1:32 pm.  

Motion passed unanimously. 
   
   
SUBMITTED BY:   
   
   
   
William Falstad   
Secretary   
   
   
APPROVED BY:   
   
   
   
Carol H. Sader   
Chair   
 

C.1 (11 of 11)



D.1.a



D.1.b



D.1.c



D.1.d



D.2.a



D.2.b



D.3.a



D.4.a



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: May 30, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Request for approval of the Woodlands / United Tote hub 

contract. 
 
PRESENTER:  Kansas Racing LLC Representative 
    Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security  
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Woodlands has requested Commission approval of their contract 
with United Tote to reconfigure the system architecture of their totalizator system from an on-
site central system to an off-site hub system.  Staff has conducted inspections and tests of the hub 
system as well as backgrounds for the hub employees. 

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review, discussion and 
approval. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval of the contract. 

 

 

 

F.1.a



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE OF MEETING:         May 30, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM:     Woodlands Race Dates and Post Times 
  
PRESENTER:    Frances Snell, Director of Racing 
    Jayme LaRocca, Kansas Racing LLC. 
    Will Gardiner, TRAK East 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The following amendments have been submitted by the Kansas Racing 
LLC and TRAK East for review and approval by the Commission.  The Commission must 
approve changes in race date(s) and post time(s). 
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission approval. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval. 
 
OTHER:  Included are written staff recommendations from the Board of Judges and 
Commission Veterinarians. 

F.2.a



F.2.b



F.2.c



F.2.d



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: May 30, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Audited financial statements of TRAK East for the year ended 

December 31, 2007 
 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Racing Association of Kansas East has submitted copies of their 
2007 audited financial statements to the Commission for review and approval.  Staff review is 
complete and a report is included in the agenda material. 

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and approval of 
the audit report. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval. 

 

 

 

F.3.a



Memo 
To: Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit & Electronic Security 

From: David J. Schultz, Chief Audit Officer 

CC:  

Date: May 21, 2008 

Re: The Racing Association of Kansas East (“TRAK East”) – 2007 Audit 

I have reviewed the audited financial statements of TRAK East for the year ended December 31, 
2007. 

McGladrey & Pullen has issued an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of TRAK East 
for the year ended December 31, 2007.  An unqualified independent auditors report means that all 
required statements are included in the report, auditing standards were followed during the 
engagement, sufficient evidence has been accumulated and the financial statements are presented 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  

Significant changes noted in the financial statements: 

Statement of Financial Position- The balance in the receivable from Kansas Racing, LLC at 
December 31, 2007 decreased by $426,241 from the ending balance in 2006.  Substantially all of 
the cash from this transaction was used to pay down trade and other payables that TRAK East 
owed to vendors and others at the end of 2006.   Both total assets and total liabilities decreased by 
approximately $332,200 from the prior year end balances, principally due to these 
receivable/payable transactions. 

Statement of Activities-  Revenues and expenses other than charitable contributions each declined 
in 2007 by approximately 8%, with the residual amount of $75,000 earmarked for distribution to 
charitable organizations.  The largest decrease noted in the expenses was in the account, Lease 
and Management Fees which decreased by $607,700. 

Statement of Cash Flows-  The significant transactions reflected in this financial statement 
principally relate to the aforementioned  receipt of cash from Kansas Racing LLC and the use of 
that cash in operations and payments of liabilities. 

 Other comments-  The Notes to Financial Statements include the normal disclosures required by 
generally accepted accounting principles and do not indicate any information that should be 
further disclosed in my report.   Additionally, the entity did not receive a management letter at the 
completion of their audit and the communication from the auditors contained only the standard 
disclosures required by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 114.  These required disclosures do 
not indicate any issues that should be further disclosed here in my report.  

 

F.3.b



F.3.c (1 of 9)



F.3.c (2 of 9)



F.3.c (3 of 9)



F.3.c (4 of 9)



F.3.c (5 of 9)



F.3.c (6 of 9)



F.3.c (7 of 9)



F.3.c (8 of 9)



F.3.c (9 of 9)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: May 30, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Audited financial statements of Kansas Racing, LLC for the 

year ended December 31, 2007 
 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  Kansas Racing, LLC has submitted copies of their 2007 audited financial 
statements to the Commission for review and approval.  Staff review is complete and a report is 
included in the agenda material. 

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and approval of 
the audit report. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval. 

 

 

 

F.4.a



 Kansas Racing and 
Gaming 
Commission 

Memo 
To: Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit & Electronic Security 

From: David J. Schultz, Chief Audit Officer 

CC:  

Date: May 21, 2008 

Re: Kansas Racing LLC – 2007 Audit 

I have reviewed the audited financial statements of Kansas Racing, LLC for the year ended 
December 31, 2007. 

Clifton Gunderson LLP has issued an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of 
Kansas Racing LLC for the year ended December 31, 2007.  An unqualified independent 
auditors report means that all required statements are included in the report, auditing 
standards were followed during the engagement, sufficient evidence has been accumulated 
and the financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Disclosure in the Notes to Financial Statements indicates that several factors, 
including continued financial support from the owner group and the potential future gaming 
revenues, have been considered by management in contemplating that the Company can 
continue as a going concern. 

Property and Equipment:   Property and equipment increased in 2007 by approximately 
$1,209,000, with $492,000 of the increase attributable to the Construction in Progress related 
to gaming at the racetrack.   

Note payable-bank;  A bank note payable of approximately $83,000 is shown in the 2007 
financial statements as current.   This note matures in July 2008, and the entire balance will 
be due and payable. 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities:  Accounts payable and Accrued Liabilities, owed 
to non affiliates, have remained at roughly the same amount as shown in 2006.  The 
combined amounts, exceeding $700,000 in both years, is currently payable and additional 
financing will be required, either from external sources or the ownership group to extinguish 
these debts. 

Member’s Equity:   Member’s Equity increased by approximately $802,000 in 2007. This 
increase included $4,531,000 of additional investments by the Member, offset by the net loss 
in 2007 of approximately $3,729,000.  

 

F.4.b



Communications to the Board of Directors-Management letter:  Independent auditing firms 
communicate certain matters to the Board of Directors in connection with the examination of 
the entity’s financial statements. This communication to Kansas Racing LLC, in the form of a 
management letter, reports several significant deficiencies in internal control, including:   

1) a lack of segregation of duties within the accounting department of the Company.  These 
audit findings include lack of segregation over cash receipts and disbursement functions, 
payroll functions, purchasing and parking lot and food and beverage revenue transactions. 

In management’s response, the lack of segregation over receipts and disbursements, 
purchasing and payroll have been addressed and the controls the Company has put in place 
will enhance the internal controls in these areas.  The response indicates that additional 
controls with respect to revenue recording of parking lot and food and beverage revenue will 
be implemented.  

                                                                                                                                                           
2) reconciliation problems and a lack of over/under procedures to be followed when variances 
are detected in revenues. 

Management’s response indicates that the Company will be enhancing internal controls over 
both the inventory and the recording of food and beverage transactions by observing 
inventory counts using accounting personnel and improving procedures used to tie out daily 
revenues recorded to the revenue reports rendered by the food and beverage department. 

3) IT controls, including access to various modules or applications within the accounting 
system. 

Management’s response indicates the Company is upgrading its accounting system and is 
enhancing internal controls with respect to access and rights within the system.   

4) issues with vendor listings and the updating of same. 

In management’s response, they indicate that during the implementation of the new 
accounting system, the vendor listing will be given a complete review to insure that outdated 
vendors are deleted and current vendor information is accurate and updated. 

 5) miscellaneous other IT issues related to lack of documentation and turnover in the 
department.   

A new IT manager has been working on documentation issues and recovery plan issues.  
This area has experienced turnover but management indicates that these issues are being 
addressed on an ongoing basis. 

6) fixed asset review and consideration of performing an inventory of the fixed assets of the 
Company. 

In management’s response, it is indicated that most of the fixed assets, except for the 
buildings will be fully depreciated at the end of 2008, but management will consider 
performing an inventory of all fixed assets and determine whether any assets with remaining 
net book value have impairment issues to consider. 

The policies and procedures that management has implemented or intends to implement in 
the near future, based on the responses they have provided, will enhance internal controls 
and should mitigate many of the deficiencies reported in the management letter from Clifton 
Gunderson to the Company 

F.4.b



F.4.c (1 of 15)



F.4.c (2 of 15)



F.4.c (3 of 15)



F.4.c (4 of 15)



F.4.c (5 of 15)



F.4.c (6 of 15)



F.4.c (7 of 15)



F.4.c (8 of 15)



F.4.c (9 of 15)



F.4.c (10 of 15)



F.4.c (11 of 15)



F.4.c (12 of 15)



F.4.c (13 of 15)



F.4.c (14 of 15)



F.4.c (15 of 15)



F.4.d (1 of 4)



F.4.d (2 of 4)



F.4.d (3 of 4)



F.4.d (4 of 4)



F.4.e (1 of 3)



F.4.e (2 of 3)



F.4.e (3 of 3)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE OF MEETING: May 30, 2008 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Conditions for Greyhound races for the Anthony Downs 
 
PRESENTER:    Frances Snell, Director of Racing 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:   The Anthony Fair Association d/b/a Anthony Downs requests approval of 
the conditions for greyhound races for the 2008 meet.  The draft conditions were reviewed by the 
staff. 
     
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and approval. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENTDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval. 
 

F.5.a



F.5.b (1 of 4)



F.5.b (2 of 4)



F.5.b (3 of 4)



F.5.b (4 of 4)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: May 30, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM:   KHA Reimbursement from Kansas Bred Program 
 
PRESENTER:   Don Cawby, Director of Administration 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:   The Kansas Horsemen’s Association (KHA) is requesting reimbursement 
of $2,144.35 for expenses incurred for the operation of the Kansas Bred Program in March 2008. The 
expenses presented for reimbursement are consistent with expenses incurred by the KHA in the past. 
 
The Commission is authorized by K.S.A. 74-8830 to “contract with and designate an official 
registering agency to implement the registration of horses.” The Commission’s contract with the 
KHA provides that funds shall be withdrawn from the Kansas Bred Program account only for 
maintaining and administering the program in accordance with the agreement and only with the prior 
approval of the Commission or the Commission's executive director. 

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED: Commission discussion, 
consideration and possible action on the request for reimbursement. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval of the expenses, subject to the 
availability of cash. 
 

F.6.a 



F.6.b



H.5.a



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE OF MEETING:          May 30, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM:     Race Official for Eureka Downs 
  
PRESENTER:    Frances Snell, Director of Racing 
    KQHRA/GCFA Representative 
  
ISSUE SUMMARY:   The following individual has been submitted by the Kansas Quarter Horse 
Racing Association (KQHRA)/Greenwood County Fair Association (GCFA) d/b/a Eureka Downs for 
review and approval by the Commission.  The Commission must decide if the individual named 
should be permitted to act in the capacity requested. 
  
                   Individual  Official Position 
                    Kay Rice  Clerk of Scales 
     
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and approval. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approve the race official, subject to the steward's approval.  The 
Director of Racing spoke to Robert Stovall, Chief Steward of the meet, regarding the proposed 2008 race 
official. 
 

J.3.a



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE OF MEETING: May 30, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Race Official for Woodlands 
     
PRESENTER:    Frances Snell, Director of Racing 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The following individual has been submitted by the Woodlands for 
review and approval by the Commission.  The Commission must decide if the individual named 
should be permitted to act in the capacity requested. 
 
  Individual    Position 
  Fabian Guido    Clerk of Scales 
  
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission and judges review and 
approval. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENTDATIONS:  Approve the race official, subject to the judges' approval. 
 
OTHER:  A written recommendation from the Woodlands judges is attached (signatures on 
file). 

J.4.a 



 Kansas Racing & 
Gaming Commission 

Memo 
To: Stephen Martino, Executive Director 

From: Board of Judges, Kansas City 

CC: Frances Snell, KRGC Director of Racing 

Date: May 23, 2008 

Re: Race Official Recommendation 

The Board of Judges would like to recommend approval of Fabian Guido for the race official 
position ofClerk of Scales.  Mr. Guido has been previously employed at The Woodlands as a
Clerk of Scales.  He is familiar with the position and its responsibilities.  

 Mr. Guido is currently licensed as a maintenance employee (facility) as well as an employee 
of the racing department (organization).  He will be keeping his position in maintenance as 
his place of full time employment.  We see no conflict of interest in this crossover between a 
facility maintenance employee and a race official. 

If you have any questions regarding Mr. Guido please contact the Judges. 

 

 

_________________________________ ________________________________ 

Robin V. Sellman    Erin K. Marshall 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Brenda Street 

 

 

 

J.4.b



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE OF MEETING: May 30, 2008 
 

AGENDA ITEM:             Stewards for  Eureka and Anthony           
 
PRESENTER:  Frances Snell, Director of Racing  
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The commission must appoint three stewards to serve at each 
horse meet.  The stewards meet the statutory and background requirements.   
 
 Individual   Position 
 Robert Stovall   Chief  Steward 
 Neal Guilfoyle   Associate Steward 
 David Turnbull  Associate Steward 
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission approval is 
required. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENTDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval. 
 

J.5.a


	2008-05-30 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	C.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	C.1 2008-05-09 minutes

	D.  CONSENT AGENDA
	D.1  TRAK East Simulcast Contracts
	D.1.a  Harrah's Boosier
	D.1.b  NY Race Assoc
	D.1.c  Ruidoso Downs
	D.1.d  Sterling Suffolk

	D.2  KRLLC contracts
	D.2.a  Century Fire
	D.2.b  WY Co Fair

	D.3  Eureka contracts
	D.3.a  Emprise Bank

	D.4  Camptown contracts
	D.4.a  Ruffin Develop


	E.  FACILITY REPORTS
	E.1  TRAK East

	F.  COMMISSION ITEMS
	F.1  United Tote Hub
	F.1.a  Staff Memo

	F.2  Woodlands Race Dates
	F.2.a  Staff Memo
	F.2.b  LaRocca Letter
	F.2.c  Board of Judges Memo
	F.2.d  Animal Health Letter

	F.3  TRAK East Audit
	F.3.a  Staff Memo
	F.3.b  Report on Audit
	F.3.c  TRAK East Audit

	F.4  KRLLC Audit
	F.4.a Staff Memo
	F.4.b  Report on Audit
	F.4.c  KRLLC 2007 Audit
	F.4.d  Managment Letter
	F.4.e  KRLLC Mgmt Ltr Response

	F.5  Anthony Downs Greyhound Conditions
	F.5.a Staff Memo
	F.5.b  Anthony Greyhound Conditions

	F.6  KHA Reimbursement
	F.6.a  Staff Memo
	F.6.b  KHA Request


	H.  STAFF REPORTS
	H.5  Calendar Review
	H.5.a  Commission Calendar


	J.  FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION
	J.1  Background Reports
	J.2  Approval of Positions
	J.3.  Eureka Race Official
	J.3.a  Staff Memo

	J.4  Woodlands Race Official
	J.4.a  Staff Memo
	J.4.b  Judges Recommendation

	J.5  Eureka & Anthony Race Stewards
	J.5.a  Staff Memo





